
Committee Agenda  

1

Area Planning Sub-Committee East
Wednesday, 13th January, 2016
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee East, which 
will be held at: 

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Wednesday, 13th January, 2016
at 7.30 pm .

Glen Chipp
Chief Executive

Democratic Services 
Officer

Jackie Leither(Directorate of Governance)
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 
01992 564243

Members:

Councillors S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), N Avey, N Bedford, A Boyce, 
H Brady, W Breare-Hall, T Church, A Grigg, M McEwen, R Morgan, J Philip, B Rolfe, 
D Stallan, B Surtees, G Waller, C Whitbread, J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area or otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the 
meeting.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Public Relations Manager 
on 01992 564039.



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 13 January 2016

2

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking. 

2. The Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties).

If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery.”

2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-
COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.

3. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 48)

To confirm the minutes of the last meetings of the Sub-Committee held on 9 
December 2015 and 16 December 2016.

4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required.

7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 49 - 90)

(Director of Governance)  To consider planning applications as set out in the attached 
schedule

Background Papers:



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 13 January 2016

3

(i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 
schedule.  

(ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the properties 
listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control.

8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  

Exclusion
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number

Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.

Confidential Items Commencement
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require:

(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press.

(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision.

Background Papers
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
report is based;  and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor.



Area Planning Sub-Committee East Wednesday, 13 January 2016

4

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item.



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees

Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee. 

Can I speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent. 

Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would normally withdraw 
from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the meeting on an item and then 
withdraw. 

Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the Sub-
Committee before leaving.

What can I say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating 
to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-Committee members. 

If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will determine the 
application in your absence.

Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application.

How are the applications considered?

The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ 
presentations. 

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her 
agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either the 
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should the 

http://www.eppingforesdc.gov.uk/


Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they are 
required to give their reasons for doing so.

The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee.

Further Information?

Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’



Area Planning Subcommittee East 2015-16
Members of the Committee and Wards:

Cllr Jones
Theydon Bois

Cllr Waller
Lower 

Sheering

Cllr Avey
Epping 

Hemnall

Cllr Bedford
Shelley

Cllr Brady
Passingford

Cllr Breare-
Hall

Epping 
Lindsey and 
Thornwood 
Common

Cllr Church
Epping 

Lindsey and 
Thornwood 
Common

Cllr Grigg
North Weald 

Bassett

Cllr Morgan
Hastingwood, 
Matching and 

Sheering Village

Cllr Philip
Theydon 

Bois

Cllr Rolfe
Lambourne

Cllr Stallan
North Weald 

Bassett

Cllr Surtees
Chipping Ongar, 
Greensted and 

Marden Ash

Cllr
Whitbread

Epping Lindsey 
and Thornwood 

Common

Cllr J H 
Whitehouse

Epping 
Hemnall

Cllr Keska
Chipping Ongar, 
Greensted and 

Marden Ash

Cllr McEwen
High Ongar, 

Willingale and 
the Rodings

Cllr Boyce
Moreton and 

Fyfield

Cllr J M 
Whitehouse

Epping 
Hemnall

http://haako/mgUserInfo.aspx?UID=60




1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 
East

Date: 9 December 2015 

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping

Time: 7.30  - 9.52 pm

Members 
Present:

P Keska (Chairman), N Bedford, A Boyce, W Breare-Hall, T Church, A Grigg, 
M McEwen, R Morgan (Vice-Chairman), J Philip, D Stallan, B Surtees, 
C Whitbread, J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse

Other 
Councillors:  

Apologies: S Jones, N Avey, H Brady, B Rolfe and G Waller

Officers 
Present:

J Shingler (Principal Planning Officer), P Pledger (Assistant Director (Housing 
Property)), G J Woodhall (Senior Democratic Services Officer) and R Perrin 
(Democratic Services Officer)

46. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings.

47. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings.

48. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN 

In the absence of the Chairman, who had tendered her apologies, the Vice-Chairman 
became the Chairman and requested nominations for the role of Vice-Chairman.

RESOLVED:

That, in the absence of a Vice-Chairman, Councillor R Morgan be appointed 
as Vice Chairman for the duration of the meeting.

49. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:



Area Planning Sub-Committee East 9 December 2015

2

That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 November 2015 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

50. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor A Grigg 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of 
attending the Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee that discussed the 
application and that she attended as a Ward Councillor. The Councillor had 
determined that her interest was not prejudicial and she would remain in the meeting 
for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1527/15 Garages Court South of 16 Bluemans End, North 
Weald Bassett, Epping.

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors W Breare-
Hall, J Philip and C Whitbread declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following 
items of the agenda by virtue of being members of the Council Housebuilding 
Cabinet Committee that considered the applications. The Councillors had determined 
that their interest was not prejudicial and they would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1527/15 Garages Court South of 16 Bluemans End, North 
Weald Bassett, Epping.

 EPF/1767/15 Garages Court to rear of Centre Avenue, Epping.
 EPF/1767/15 Garages adjacent 17 Springfield, Epping.
 EPF/1769/15 Garages adjacent 36 Springfield, Epping.
 EPF/2351/15 Garages Court to rear of Central Avenue, Epping

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors J H 
Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following 
items of the agenda by virtue of attending the Council Housebuilding Cabinet 
Committee that considered the applications. The Councillors had determined that 
their interest was not prejudicial and they would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1527/15 Garages Court South of 16 Bluemans End, North 
Weald Bassett, Epping.

 EPF/1767/15 Garages Court to rear of Centre Avenue, Epping.
 EPF/1767/15 Garages adjacent 17 Springfield, Epping.
 EPF/1769/15 Garages adjacent 36 Springfield, Epping.
 EPF/2351/15 Garages Court to rear of Central Avenue, Epping.

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Stallan 
declared a pecuniary interest in the following items of the agenda by virtue of being 
the Chairman of the Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee that considered the 
applications. The Councillor had determined that his interest was prejudicial and he 
would leave the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1527/15 Garages Court South of 16 Bluemans End, North 
Weald Bassett, Epping.

 EPF/1767/15 Garages Court to rear of Centre Avenue, Epping.
 EPF/1767/15 Garages adjacent 17 Springfield, Epping.
 EPF/1769/15 Garages adjacent 36 Springfield, Epping.
 EPF/2351/15 Garages Court to rear of Central Avenue, Epping.



Area Planning Sub-Committee East 9 December 2015

3

(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor T Church 
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of 
being related to the objector. The Councillor had determined that his interest was not 
prejudicial and he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1486/15 102 High Street, Epping.
 EPF/2281/15 102 High Street, Epping.

51. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

52. CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER TPO/EPF/22/15 - FORMER 
CARPENTERS ARMS, HIGH ROAD, THORNWOOD, EPPING 

The Senior Planning Officer, J Shingler advised that the Tree Preservation Order 
aimed to protect 3 horse chestnut trees and an oak tree situated within the car park 
to the rear of the former Carpenters Arms, High Road, Thornwood. 

The Planning application EPF/2670/14 was refused (and was currently going through 
the appeal process) for the demolition of the existing buildings and the construction 
of five dwellings. In order for the proposed development, all the trees would need to 
be removed and would not be possible to replace them with ones that could develop 
to a similar size or prominence within the street scene. Officers raised no objection to 
the proposed development in terms of tree loss, when the application was discussed 
by Councillors at District Development Committee (8 April 2015) it was commented 
that the trees ‘made the area looker greener and were important within the street 
scene’. Therefore the only way to ensure that the trees were retained was by the 
making of the TPO. 

Four representations had been received, two in favour of the TPO and two objections 
and the Sub-committee heard from an objector to the proposed TPO.

RESOLVED:

That tree preservation order TPO/EPF/22/15 be confirmed without 
modification. 

53. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 9 be determined as set out in 
the schedule attached to these minutes.

CHAIRMAN





Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1486/15

SITE ADDRESS: 102 High Street
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4AF

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Hemnall

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of outbuilding and the erection of detached annex with 
mezzanine floor. (Amended description)

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577093

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 No development shall have taken place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. For 
the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made available for 
inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application site itself. 

3 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed rooflight 
in the northwestern roofslope shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have 
fixed frames shall be permanently retained in that condition.

4 The ridge line of the annexe hereby approved shall be no less than 200mm lower 
than the existing attached outbuilding at No. 100 High Street.

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577093


6 The building hereby approved shall be used only for purposes ancillary to the main 
use of the dwelling house at 102 High Street Epping and shall not be occupied as a 
separate dwelling.



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/2281/15

SITE ADDRESS: 102 High Street
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4AF

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Hemnall

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Grade II curtilage listed building consent for demolition of 
outbuilding and the erection of detached annex with mezzanine 
floor. (Amended description).

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578964

CONDITIONS 

1 The works hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years, beginning with the date on which the consent was granted.

2 Samples of the types and details of colours of all the external finishes shall be 
submitted for approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development, and the development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved detail.

3 Additional drawings that show details of proposed new windows, doors, rooflights 
and junctions with the neighbouring building by section and elevation at scales 
between 1:20 and 1:1 as appropriate, shall be submitted to and approved by the 
LPA in writing prior to the commencement of any works.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578964


Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1527/15

SITE ADDRESS: Garage Court South of 16 Bluemans End 
North Weald Bassett 
Epping
Essex
CM16 6HD

PARISH: North Weald Bassett

WARD: North Weald Bassett

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

The demolition of the existing garages and the erection of 4 no. 
affordable homes consisting of 2 no. houses and a pair of 
maisonettes along with 9 no. parking spaces and associated 
amenity space.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577235

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 612 039 PL01, 612 039 PL02, 612 039 PL03 C, 612 039 
PL04 A, 612 039 PL05 A, 612 039 PL06 A, 612 039 PL07, 612 039 PL08, 612 039 
PL09

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

5 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577235


6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

8 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan.

9 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows.



10 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

11 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

12 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

13 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  



14 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

15 Prior to the first occupation of the development the vehicle parking and turning areas 
as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed and 
marked out. The parking and turning areas shall be retained in perpetuity for their 
intended purpose.

16 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council.

17 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

18 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/1530/15

SITE ADDRESS: Garage Court to rear of Centre Avenue 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4JH

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Hemnall

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of exisitng garages and erection of 2 no. affordable 
homes along with 5 no. parking spaces and associated amenity 
space.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577238

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 612 043 PL01 B, 612 043 PL02 A, 612 043 PL03 C, 612 
043 PL04 A, 612 043 PL05 A, 612 043 PL06 A, 612 043 PL07 A, 612 043 PL08, 612 
043 PL09, 612 043 PL10 A

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the first floor south east elevation of Plot 1 and the first floor north 
elevation of Plot 2 shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames 
to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed 
and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

5 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577238


6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

8 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

9 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 



adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

10 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

11 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

12 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

13 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.



14 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

15 Prior to the first occupation of the development the vehicle parking and turning areas 
as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed and 
marked out. The parking and turning areas shall be retained in perpetuity for their 
intended purpose.

16 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council.

17 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

18 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

19 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing.
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works.

20 Once work commences, an off street parking assessment of the Springfield and 
Central Avenue area of Epping shall be carried out and its findings reported to the 
Director of Communities.



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/1767/15

SITE ADDRESS: Garages adjacent 17 Springfield 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 4LA

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Hemnall

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

4 affordable homes with 8 parking spaces.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577854

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 612/046/PL: 01A, 02B, 03C, 04A, 06A, 07B, 08B and 09B

2 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Class A, B and C of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

4 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

5 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

6 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577854


clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

7 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

8 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

9 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

10 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 



scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

11 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

12 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

13  Prior to the first occupation of the development the vehicle parking and turning 
areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed 
and marked out.  The parking and turning areas shall be retained in perpetuity for 
their intended purpose. 

14 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council. 

15 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.  

16 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary. 

17 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors



2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing.
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works.

18 Once work commences, an off street parking assessment of the Springfield and 
Central Avenue area of Epping shall be carried out and its findings reported to the 
Director of Communities.

The case officer brought to members’ attention that the number of objections listed in the agenda 
report was incorrect.  There was a petition objecting to the proposal signed by 124 people from the 
local area and in addition 9 separate letters of objection from;

11, 32, 36 and 40 Springfield, 52 Centre Avenue, 53 and 63 Sunnyside Road and two from 
unspecified addresses.



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/1769/15

SITE ADDRESS: Garages adjacent 36 Springfield 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4LA

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Hemnall

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

2 affordable homes with 3 parking spaces.

DECISION: Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577856

Members were concerned, given the number of garage sites in the area that approval for housing 
had been granted for, that further consideration should be given to the possibility of utilising this 
site for off street parking to offset the loss of the other garage sites. They therefore deferred this 
item to enable the matter to be discussed at the Council Housebuilding Cabinet Committee on the 
19th January before a decision is made.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=577856


 
Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/2351/15

SITE ADDRESS: Garage court to rear of Centre Avenue 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4JH

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Hemnall

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing garages and erection of 4 no. affordable 
homes with 9 parking spaces and associated amenity space.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579153

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 612 049 PL01 A, 612 049 PL02, 612 049 PL03 A, 612 049 
PL04, 612 049 PL05, 612 049 PL06, 612 049 PL07, 612 049 PL08, 612 049 PL09, 
612 049 PL10

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed first floor 
window opening in the north elevation of Plot 1 shall be entirely fitted with obscured 
glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in 
which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

5 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579153


submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

8 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

9 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 



Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

10 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

11 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

12 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

13 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

14 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.



15 Prior to the first occupation of the development the vehicle parking and turning areas 
as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed and 
marked out. The parking and turning areas shall be retained in perpetuity for their 
intended purpose.

16 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council.

17 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

18 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

19 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing.
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works.

20 Once work commences, an off street parking assessment of the Springfield and 
Central Avenue area of Epping shall be carried out and its findings reported to the 
Director of Communities.

The case officer explained that the site plan on the agenda was incorrect and showed the correct 
site plan.



Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/2105/15

SITE ADDRESS: Spain End
The Street
Willingale
Ongar
Essex
CM5 0SJ

PARISH: Willingale

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Grade II listed building consent for removal of internal and external 
walls. Installation of the steel beams over the two openings and the 
replacement of a timber floor with concrete.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578529

CONDITIONS 

1 Within six months of the date of this permission, the external beam and Orangery 
shall be removed and the rear re-instated to match that previously in situ as shown 
on approved drawing numbers 1617/05B and 1617/09, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2305/15

Site Name: Brook House, Harlow Road, 
Moreton, CM5 0DL

Scale of Plot: 1/2500

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578529


Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No: EPF/2305/15

SITE ADDRESS: Brook House
Harlow Road
Moreton
Essex
CM5 0DL

PARISH: Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers

WARD: Moreton and Fyfield

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed replacement vehicular access point

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579034

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The vehicular access shall be constructed at right angles to the highway boundary 
and to the existing carriageway. The width of the access at its junction with the 
highway shall not be less than 3 metres.

3 The existing access shown on the approved plan shall be permanently closed 
immediately the proposed new access is brought into first beneficial use.

4 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

5 Materials of surfacing of access way to be agreed prior to construction and 
completed in accordance with the approved details.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579034


1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 
East

Date: 16 December 2015 

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping

Time: 7.30  - 9.20 pm

Members 
Present:

S Jones (Chairman), P Keska (Vice-Chairman), N Bedford, A Boyce, 
H Brady, A Grigg, R Morgan, J Philip, D Stallan, B Surtees, G Waller, 
C Whitbread, J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse

Other 
Councillors:  

Apologies: N Avey, W Breare-Hall, M McEwen and B Rolfe

Officers 
Present:

J Leither (Democratic Services Officer), S Tautz (Democratic Services 
Manager) and J Godden (Principal Planning Officer (Heritage, Enforcement & 
Landscaping))

54. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and other meetings.

55. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at meetings of the Plans Sub-Committees.

56. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The following declarations of interest were made by members of the Sub-Committee 
pursuant to the Council's Code of Member Conduct:

(a) Councillor P. Keska declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda items 6 (6) 
(EPF/2409/15) and 6 (7) (EPF/2411/15) (Grey End Cottage, Brentwood Road, 
Ongar) by virtue of having had prior involvement with the applications in his 
capacity as local ward member for the site. Councillor Keska indicated that his 
interest was not prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting during the 
consideration of the application and the voting thereon; and

(b) Councillor B. Surtees declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda items 6 (6) 
(EPF/2409/15) and 6 (7) (EPF/2411/15) (Grey End Cottage, Brentwood Road, 



Area Planning Sub-Committee East 16 December 2015

2

Ongar) by virtue of having had prior involvement with the applications in his 
capacity as local ward member for the site. Councillor Surtees indicated that his 
interest was not prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting during the 
consideration of the application and the voting thereon.

57. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

The Director of Governance reported that that there was no urgent business for 
consideration by the Sub-Committee at the meeting.

58. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.

RESOLVED:

That planning applications numbered 1–8 be determined as set out in the 
schedule attached to these minutes.

CHAIRMAN



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/2044/15

SITE ADDRESS: Woodpeckers
Murrells Farm 
22 London Road 
Stanford Rivers 
Ongar 
Essex
CM5 9QE

PARISH: Stanford Rivers

WARD: Passingford

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of a summerhouse

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578455

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Additional drawings that show details of proposed new eaves, by section and 
elevation at scales between 1:20 and 1:1 as appropriate, shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any 
works.

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578455


Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/2064/15

SITE ADDRESS: Central House 
High Street 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9AA

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing single storey outbuilding and erection of new 
3 storey mixed use building comprising 5 flats and 2 shops.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578474

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 
OCH-555-PL-2015-001
OCH-555-PL-2015-002
OCH-555-PL-2015-003
OCH-555-PL-2015-004
OCH-555-PL-2015-005
OCH-555-PL-2015-006
OCH-555-PL-2015-007
OCH-555-PL-2015-008
OCH-555-PL-2015-009
OCH-555-PL-2015-010
OCH-555-PL-2015-011
OCH-555-PL-2015-012
OCH-555-PL-2015-013
OCH-555-PL-2015-014
OCH-555-PL-2015-015
OCH-555-PL-2015-016
OCH-555-PL-2015-017
OCH-555-PL-2015-018
OCH-555-PL-2015-019

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578474


3 Prior to first occupation of the development the access shall be provided with a 
dropped kerb crossing with a minimum width of 5.5 metres.

4 Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements and full 
footway reinstatement of the redundant dropped kerb crossing, as shown in principle 
on drawing no. OCH-555-PL-011, shall be fully implemented.

5 The proposed development shall not be occupied until such time as the vehicle 
parking area indicated on the approved plans, including any parking spaces for the 
mobility impaired, has been hard surfaced, sealed and marked out in parking bays. 
The vehicle parking area shall be retained in this form at all times. The vehicle 
parking shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles that are 
related to the use of the development unless otherwise agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority.

6 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times.

7 No gates or other form of enclosure shall be erected or placed across the access. 

8 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council, to include six 
one day travel vouchers for use with the relevant local public transport operator.

9 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

10 No development shall have taken place until samples of the types and colours of the 
external finishes and details of windows and doors have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of 
the development. The development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. For the purposes of this condition, the samples shall only be made 
available for inspection by the Local Planning Authority at the planning application 
site itself. 

11 A full photographic record of the building to be demolished shall be made and 
deposited with the Essex Historic Environment Record.

12 No demolition or preliminary groundwork shall take place until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance 
with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant 
and approved by the local planning authority.



13 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

14 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

15 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]



16 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

17 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

123

 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2088/15

Site Name: Central House, High Street, Ongar, 
CM5 9AA

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/2088/15

SITE ADDRESS: Central House 
High Street 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9AA

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Curtilage of Grade II listed building application for demolition of 
existing single storey outbuilding and erection of new 3 storey 
mixed use building comprising 5 flats and 2 shops.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578503

CONDITIONS 

1 The works hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years, beginning with the date on which the consent was granted.

2 A full photographic record of the building to be demolished shall be made and 
deposited with the Essex Historic Environment Record.

3 No demolition or preliminary groundwork shall take place until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance 
with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant 
and approved by the local planning authority.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578503


Report Item No:4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2219/15

SITE ADDRESS: Chase Farm 
Vicarage Lane
North Weald Bassett 
Epping 
Essex
CM16 6AL

PARISH: North Weald Bassett

WARD: North Weald Bassett

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Change of use of unit 6D to B1 workshop use

DECISION:  Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578854

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 3547/3, 1489/12 Rev: A

2 The premises shall be used solely for B1 use and for no other purpose (including 
any other purpose generally permitted by the Town & Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1987 (as amended), or in any provision equivalent to that Class in 
any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=578854


Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/2338/15

SITE ADDRESS: Land to rear of Copper Beech
Harlow Common
Essex
CM17 9ND

PARISH: North Weald Bassett

WARD: Hastingwood, Matching and Sheering Village

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed dwelling in lieu of existing commercial/horticultural 
outbuildings.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579100

Members decided to defer making a decision on this application in order to carry out a site visit.

123

 

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2409/15

Site Name: Grey End Cottage, Brentwood 
Road, Ongar, CM5 9DH

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579100


Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/2409/15

SITE ADDRESS: Grey End Cottage
Brentwood Road
Ongar
Essex
CM5 9DH

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed first floor side extension, first floor rear dormer window, 
and ground floor rear extension, including internal and external 
alteration. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579321

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: GC1F; GC3A; GC2D; GC5; GC4.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579321


Report Item No:7

APPLICATION No: EPF/2411/15

SITE ADDRESS: Grey End Cottage
Brentwood Road
Ongar
Essex
CM5 9DH

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Grade II Listed Building Consent for first floor side extension, first 
floor rear dormer window, and ground floor rear extension, 
including internal and external alteration. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579322

CONDITIONS 

1 The works hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years, beginning with the date on which the consent was granted.

2 Additional drawings that show details of proposed new windows, doors, rooflights, 
eaves, verges, fascias, cills, structural openings and junctions with the existing 
building, by section and elevations at scales between 1:20 and 1:1 as appropriate 
and annotated with dimensions, shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA in 
writing prior to the commencement of any works.

3 The proposed new roof light shall be of the conservation type and shall be installed 
so that it is not any higher than the surrounding roof tiles.

4 Samples and details of roofing tile, rainwater goods shall be submitted to and 
approved by the LPA in writing prior to the commencement of any works.

5 No part of the fabric of the building, including any timber framing and external 
brickwork shall be cut, cleaned, coated or removed without the prior written approval 
of the local planning authority, unless specified on the approved drawings.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579322


Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/2438/15

SITE ADDRESS: New House Farm
Vicarage Lane
North Weald Bassett
Epping
Essex
CM16 6AP

PARISH: North Weald Bassett

WARD:
DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of a steel portal framed agricultural building to store grain.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579379

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawing no: 150901

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those specified within the submitted application, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

4 The grain store hereby approved shall be used solely for agricultural purposes and 
for no other purpose.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579379




AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘EAST’

13 January 2015

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION

PAGE

1 EPF/1349/15 Stone Hall Farm 
Downhall Road 
Matching Green 
Essex
CM17 0RA

Grant Permission 

(Subject to Legal 

Agreement)

50

2 EPF/2338/15 Land to rear of Copper Beech
Harlow Common
Essex
CM17 9ND

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

62

3 EPF/2795/15 287 - 291 High Street 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4DA

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

70

4 EPF/2837/15 The Orchard
Queens Head Yard 
The Street 
Sheering 
Nr Bishops Stortford 
Herts 
CM22 7LN

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

76

5 EPF/2853/15 2 Great Lawn
Ongar
Essex
CM5 0AA

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

86



123

 

Tennis Court

The Gorse

FB

Path (u
m)

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

The Gorse Wood

FB

Post

FB

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 1

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/1349/15

Site Name: Stone Hall Farm, Downhall Road, 
Matching Green, CM17 0RA

Scale of Plot: 1/5000



Report Item No:1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1349/15

SITE ADDRESS: Stone Hall Farm 
Downhall Road 
Matching Green 
Essex
CM17 0RA

PARISH: Matching

WARD: Hastingwood, Matching and Sheering Village

APPLICANT: Mr Phil Roberts

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Construction of 9 no. residential properties and associated car 
parking and new highway access.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=576738

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 276/P/006, 008A, 100B, 101A, 102, 103, 104A, 107A, 109, 
110, 111.

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument 
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage(s) hereby approved shall be retained 
so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary 
storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=576738


converted into a room or used for any other purpose.

6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Classes A, B and E of Part  of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall 
be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

7 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing.
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works.

8 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

9 Prior to first occupation of the development, the access at its centre line shall be 
provided with clear to ground visibility splays with dimensions of 4.5 metres by 90 
metres to the north and south, as measured from and along the nearside edge of the 
carriageway and retained free of any obstruction in perpetuity.

10 Prior to the first occupation of the development the access arrangements, vehicle 
parking and turning areas as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, 
hard surfaced, sealed and marked out and shall be retained as such in perpetuity.

11 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

12 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

13 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 



shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

14 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

15 Prior to the commencement of any works a full survey for bats should be undertaken 
in accordance with guidelines from Natural England (or other relevant body).  These 
should be submitted to EFDC for approval.  
Should the surveys reveal the presence of bats, or their breeding sites or resting 
places then an appropriate and proportionate detailed mitigation and compensation 
strategy must be written in accordance with any guidelines available from Natural 
England (or other relevant body) and submitted to EFDC for approval. 
The works shall then be undertaken in compliance with the approved details.

16 The recommendations in section 5.2 of the Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey 
submitted by t4 Ecology should be adhered to,  These recommendations are 
concerning bat-sensitive lighting, birds and habitat improvements.

17 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion 
of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the 
management and maintenance plan.

18 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 



woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

19 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

20 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

21 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  



22 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

23 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan.

24 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

And subject to the applicant first entering into a legal aggreement under section 106 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act within 1 month, of the date of this meeting to ensure that 1, 
3 bed unit of affordable rented accommodation is provided on site and a contribution of 
£10,000 towards Community Safety infrastucture.

This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development  of 5 
dwellings or more and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (d) of 
the Council’s Delegated Functions). 

Description of Site:
 
The Application site is located on the western side of Downhall Road to the north of Matching 
Green.  The site comprises approximately 2.15 hectares in an L shape with a road frontage of 
approximately 180m. The site has two distinct elements, an undeveloped rectangular field of about 
0.75 of a hectare with a road frontage of about 125m and a depth of between about 50 and 
75metres, and an L shaped hard surfaced area with 5 single storey agricultural buildings which 
has been used as an business park for many years and also has a significant open storage 
element including the storage of large lorry containers. The site backs on to agricultural land and is 
adjacent to woodland to the North West. Immediately to the east is a group of dwellings, including 
the grade II listed Stonehall Barn which immediately abuts the boundary of the site close to the 
road frontage.
The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt, but not within a conversation area.



Description of Proposal 

The application is for the redevelopment of the business park, by removal of all the existing 
buildings, containers and open storage and their replacement with 9 detached dwellings. 3 would 
be located in a staggering line to the left of the proposed access road set back from the road 
frontage by between 30 and 35 metres, the remaining six would be arranged around a gravel 
courtyard towards the rear of the site. The open land to the right of the access track would remain 
underdeveloped for use as a paddock, and a landscaped area would be created in front of these 
dwellings. The existing access would be closed up.

The proposed properties facing Downhall Road are detached 3 bed units, traditional in design and 
true cottage style with the first floor accommodation within the roof, served by pitched roofed 
dormer windows to the front and rear. Each property has a rear garden approximately 15m depth 
and there is a residential parking area to the providing 2 spaces for each unit.
The remaining 6 units are a variety of styles, but all have traditional rectangular floor plans and 
materials and detailing, each has a double garage and additional parking so pace and they are set 
around gravelled courtyard such that they appear similar to a farmyard development. Each 
property has a substantial private garden area and additional planting is proposed to fronts of the 
units.

Relevant History:

The site was originally a poultry farm, use of the three larger buildings for business use was 
allowed on appeal back in 1989 and since then the uses have diversified and intensified and 
storage use has also taken place.

In 2011 a certificate of Lawfulness was granted for the open storage use as the applicants had 
proven on the balance of probability that the use had continued for in excess of 10 years.

In 2013 permission was granted for redevelopment of the site as a modern business park, with 14 
new business units to replace the existing depilated structures and 6 terraced properties located 
towards the front of the site partially as enabling development. (Three of the terraced properties 
were to be affordable rented units.) EPF 2343/12

IN 2014 an application for a revised access to the approved scheme was granted (EPF/2494/15) 
(The access now proposed is the same as that approved)

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS

35 neighbours (residential and existing business units) were consulted and a site notice was 
erected.

The business units are however now vacant and therefore most of the letters were returned, no 
response were received.

At time writing, no response has been received from Parish Council, who were consulted back in 
June, however the case officer has raised this and any comments will be reported orally at 
committee.

Polices Applied 

The NPPF



The following polices of the adopted Local Plan and Local Plan Alterations are considered to be in 
accordance with the NPPF and therefore are to be accorded due weight. 

CP2 Quality of environmental 
CP3 New Development 
CP5 Sustainable building 
GB2 A Development in the Green Belt 
GB7 A Conspicuous development 
HC12 Development affecting setting of listed buildings
RP4 Contaminated Land 
RP5A Adverse environmental impacts 
H5A Affordable Housing 
H6A Thresholds affordable housing
H7A Levels of affordable housing 
H8A Availability of affordable housing in Perpetuity
DBE1 Design of new buildings 
DBE2 Effect on neighbouring properties  
DBE4 Design in the Green Belt
DBE5 Design and layout of new development 
DBE6 Car parking in new development
DBE8 Private Amenity space 
DBE9 Loss of amenity 
LL2 Inappropriate rural development
LL7 Planting and protection of trees 
LL10 Adequacy of landscape retention
LL11 landscaping Schemes
ST1 Location of development
ST2 Accessibility of development
ST4 Road safety
ST6 Vehicle parking 
I1A Planning obligations
U3B Sustainable Drainage Systems

Issues and Considerations:

Green Belt

The site within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The NPPF states that the construction of most new 
buildings in the Green Belt should be regarded an inappropriate, however one of the expectations 
to this is limited infilling or partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites which 
would not have greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose of including 
land within it than the existing development.

The area of land that is affected by this proposal (which excludes the greenfield area to the front of 
the site which is to remain undeveloped), is accepted as being previously developed land, that is 
land on which there is lawful non agricultural use. The main consideration is therefore whether the 
proposed redevelopment will have a greater impact on openness and the purpose of including 
land in the Green Belt, than the existing development. The proposed redevelopment will not 
spread the built development outside the areas already developed, and despite the increase in the 
height of buildings and the introduction of residential gardens, it is considered that the proposed 
redevelopment is sited and designed in such a way that it will have only a relatively minor 
increased impact on openness and as such is in accordance with Green Belt Policy.



Impact on Residential Amenity

The existing lawful use of the site includes uses very close to the residential properties Stonehall 
Barn and Stonehall House and there is currently no control over hours of use of the site. The 
proposed redevelopment of the site removes all business uses and moves the built form further 
from the existing residential uses. There will be no direct overlooking of any habitable windows or 
private amenity areas or any overshadowing and it is considered that the proposals will have a 
positive impact on the amenities of adjacent resident.

Design and impact on setting of listed building 

The proposed development is well designed and whilst the previously approved development of 6 
terraced houses was considered more appropriate for the fronting part of the site, as they were 
reminiscent of farm cottages, given the setback from the road, and the extent of existing boundary 
vegetation plus the proposed additional landscaping, it is on balance considered that the three 
detached houses now proposed would not have a significantly adverse impact on the setting of the 
listed buildings. Whilst there is some concern from conservation officer that the provision of three 
matching detached dwellings in this position prevents the site being seen as a traditional farm 
where you expect just 1 farm house and then smaller subsidiary building, it is considered that the 
buildings will be read as a separate development to the original farmyard and will not harm the 
setting of adjacent listed buildings. 

The further 6 units set around a central gravelled courtyard towards the rear of the site is 
considered an appropriate form of development in this rural location and balanced against the 
current business uses and open storage, would enhance rather than harm the setting of the 
adjacent buildings.

Tree and landscaping

The Application was supported by a good quality tree report and landscaping proposals which 
demonstrate to the satisfaction of our landscape officer that the development is feasible without a 
detrimental impact on the trees on and around the site. Subject therefore to conditions the 
development is considered acceptable in landscape terms.

Sustainability

One of the main tenets of NPPF is sustainability. This is not in a sustainable location, it is remote 
from centres of population and anyone living at the site will be heavily reliant on motorised 
transport. In addition it is a complete redevelopment with no reused buildings or materials, which 
may be regarded as unsustainable. However offsetting this, is that the existing use of the site and 
indeed the previous approval on the site equally unsustainable, drawing business traffic into the 
rural area. This development only proposes 3 additional residential units, over the previous 
consent and removes a significant amount of business traffic and as such it is not considered that 
the unsustainable location is in itself sufficient to warrant refusal of the application.

Ecology

An extended phase one habitat survey was submitted with the application and this concluded that 
no protected species were likely to be impacted by the development due to the nature of the site 
and the existing land use/management. Although bats may forage along the existing tree corridors 
around the site, these are to be retained so there will be no adverse impact. However the 
submitted details are now 3 years out of date and therefore if planning permission is granted it is 
recommended that a revised bat survey is carried out prior to development.
Drainage



The site is currently developed and there is an existing consent for redevelopment, it is considered 
unlikely that the development will result in any increased risk flooding in this location within Flood 
Zone 1 (area at least risk of flooding) however due to the scale of development, there is a 
incorporate sustainable drainage systems to ensure that run off is reduced to green field levels. 
Whilst Essex County Council have advised that in the absence of a flood risk assessment the 
application should be refused, given the amount of space within the site that is remaining 
undeveloped officers are confident that sure a scheme can be suitably designed and consider that 
this can be suitably dealt with by condition.

Contamination

Due to its previous uses the land is potentially contaminated and the proposed use is one that is 
particularly vulnerable, however it is considered that this can be covered adequately by conditions.

Affordable Housing

As the application site is within the rural area and on previously developed land the policies of the 
Local Plan and Local Plan alterations require that where four or more dwellings are proposed 50% 
of the properties must be “affordable” housing.
The application was submitted with an economic viability assessment that concluded that the 
inclusion of affordable housing, or an affordable housing contribution would render the scheme 
unviable and delay the provision of replacement business units and housing. 

As part of the assessment of the application therefore an independent economic viability 
assessment was commissioned (paid for by the applicant) and this concluded that the 
development would create sufficient surplus for the scheme to still be viable if 1 of the fronting 
three bed units were to be provided as an affordable unit. In addition there would be a further 
surplus of about £10,000 and it has been suggested that rather than this going into the general pot 
towards the provision housing elsewhere this could provide a very valuable contribution towards 
the Districts Community safety infrastructure. The applicant has agreed to enter into legal 
agreement under Section 106 to provide both these elements.

Without this agreement the residential development would be clearly contrary to current adopted 
polices and the scheme would be recommended for refusal. With the agreement, the proposals 
are in compliance with the affordable housing policy. 

Other material considerations

The existence of the previous consent for 6 houses and redevelopment of the business units is a 
material consideration that weighs in favour of the development. Whilst it is regrettable that the 
earlier scheme, that would have seen continued employment in the rural area, has not come 
about, this alternative low key development will not have any greater impact on openness and is 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and current Government thinking with regard to 
housing provision on previously developed land.

Conclusion

In conclusion therefore it is considered that subject to conditions and to legal agreement under 
section 106 to ensure that 1 of the proposed houses will be available for affordable rented 
accommodation in perpetuity, and a contribution towards Community safety Infrastructure, the 
development is in accordance with the NPPF and adopted polices of the Local Plan and Local 
Plan Alterations and in recommended for approval.



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jill Shingler 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992564106

Or if no direct contact be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

mailto:contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


This page has been intentionally left blank.



123

 

96.3m96.3m

96.9m

97.2m

97.5m

96.9m

97.2m

97.5m

103.3m103.3m

95.7m

93.6m

95.7m

93.6m

88.4m88.4m

85.9m85.9m
SR

FF

FFFF

FW

RH

Def

Und

RH

FF

C
P & ED

 Bdy

R
H

Und
C

P & ED
 Bdy

R
H

Und

SR

SR

FF

Def

FF

FW

Und

RH

RH
FF

Def

RH
Def

RH
FF

0.91m RH

Def

0.91m RH

Def

SR

The Firs

2

Wood Cottages

1

Reedens

2

Cottages
Bell

Bungalow

1

The

Green

Mantin

St

M
argarets

Fivetowns

Badgers

M
ount House

Beech

Woodlands

Magdalene

House

Copper

Hall

3

9

12

4

13

Garage

14

The
New House

Caroline

Hill Cottage

Baytree Cottage

Maya

Vicarage

St Mary Magdalene

Cottage

The Rosaries

End House

Ash Grove

Hill

House

16

2

(PH)

The Gatekeeper

3
1

15

1

Avenue House
Allways

Newhouse

6

Tara

Whalebone Cottages

The Rosaries

Beech

Copper

Reedens

Wood Cottages

The Firs

2

1

The

Bell

Mantin

1

St

Cottages

M
argarets

Bungalow

2

Fivetowns

Green
Badgers

M
ount House

Vicarage

St Mary Magdalene

Woodlands

Magdalene

House

New House

13

4

9

6

12

3

Garage

14

The

Ash Grove

End House

Baytree Cottage
Hill Cottage

Cottage
Caroline

Tara

2

Whalebone Cottages

(PH)

The Gatekeeper

16

3
1

15

1

Maya

Allways
Avenue House

Newhouse

Hill

House

Hall

HARLOW COMMON

HARLOW COMMON

LO
N

D
O

N
 R

O
A

D
HARLOW COMMON

HARLOW COMMON

PARK AVENUE

LO
N

D
O

N
 R

O
A

D

PARK AVENUE

CHURCH ROAD

CHURCH ROAD

LATTON STREET

LATTON STREET
Pond

Pond

D
rain

Drain

Pond

Drain

D
rain

Drain

D
rain

Pond

Drain

D
rain

Drain

Pond

Pond

Drain El Sub StaEl Sub Sta

Path (um
)

LB

Path (um
)

LB

El
Sub Sta

El
Sub Sta

Latton Common

War MemorialWar Memorial

Latton Common

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 2

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2338/15

Site Name: Land To Rear of Copper Beech, 
Harlow Common, CM17 9ND

Scale of Plot: 1/2500



Report Item No:2

APPLICATION No: EPF/2338/15

SITE ADDRESS: Land to rear of Copper Beech
Harlow Common
Essex
CM17 9ND

PARISH: North Weald Bassett

WARD: Hastingwood, Matching and Sheering Village

APPLICANT: Mr Steven Smithson

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed dwelling in lieu of existing commercial/horticultural 
outbuildings.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579100

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: R.L.1, 4, 5, 6, 6A,7.

3 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

4 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

5 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=579100


6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Class A, B and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

7 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

8 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out only in 
accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning Authority gives 
its written consent to any variation.

9 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

10 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 



A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

11 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

12 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

13 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  



14 Before any preparatory demolition or construction works commence on site, full 
ecological surveys and a mitigation strategy for the site shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority for agreement in writing with a working methodology for site 
clearance and construction work to minimise impact on any protected species and 
nesting birds. Development shall be undertaken only in accordance with the agreed 
strategy and methodology.

15 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

16 Notwithstanding the approved drawings, all windowframes and doors shall be of 
painted timber only and permanently retained as such.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) and,

since it is for a type of development that cannot be determined by Officers if more than two 
objections material to the planning merits of the proposal to be approved are received (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(f).)

This application was deferred from the last Area Plans Sub Committee to enable a site visit to be 
carried out by members of the committee.

The report has been amended to include the comments of the Conservation officer and to add the 
suggested condition regarding use of timber for doors and windows, but otherwise remains the 
same.

Description of Site: 

Copper Beech is located within a ribbon of residential properties on the edge of Harlow. The area 
contains a mix of dwelling styles, including some Listed Buildings, and the entire area is within the 
Metropolitan Green Belt. 

An area to the rear of the house, and under separate ownership, forms the application site.  This 
site which contains a string of low set storage buildings. The access to the site is to the north of 
the dwelling and off Harlow Common and runs along the flank boundary of the house leading to 
the rear area containing the storage buildings. This area is a fairly large expanse of land which is 
laid out as an informal garden and flanked to the front and western side by other residential 
properties and there are a number of Listed Buildings nearby. 

Description of Proposal:



The applicant seeks consent to demolish the existing buildings on site and replace them with one 
detached dwelling. The house would have a footprint measuring approximately 13.5m x 8.0m 
giving a square area of 105 sq m. The building would be finished in weatherboarding with a tiled 
roof, half dormer windows and would have a ridge level measuring 6.0m. The roof would be 
gabled on one end with a half hip finish on the other. Access to the site would be as existing and 
this separate area of land would form the curtilage.

Relevant History:

EPF/2903/14 - Proposed replacement dwelling and garage block in lieu of existing dwelling and 
outbuildings.  Refuse Permission – 04/02/15.
EPF/0535/15 - Proposed replacement dwelling and garage block in lieu of existing dwelling and 
outbuildings. Re-application of EPF/2903/14. Withdrawn by Applicant - 16/06/2015.
EPF/0960/15 - Erection of new detached garage. Grant Permission (With Conditions) – 
29/06/2015. 

Policies Applied:

CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings
DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties
DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
GB7A – Conspicuous Development 
GB15A – Replacement Dwellings 
LL10 – Provision for Landscape retention
LL11 – Landscaping Schemes
HC12 – Setting of Listed Buildings

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 214 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight. 

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

25 neighbours consulted: the following responses were received:
PARISH COUNCIL- No Objection

TARA, LONDON ROAD – Strong objection, seriously harmful to our outlook, adverse impact on 
drainage, harm to rural nature of area, will open door to further development in the future.
MAYA, LONDON ROAD, Object. The site has never been used commercially it was just garden. 
Contrary to Green Belt policy. The building is too high, will overlook neighbours. Inadequate 
sewage capacity for additional dwelling.
CARLINE COTTAGE, LONDON ROAD – Overdevelopment, out of keeping with area, loss of 
privacy contrary to human rights act, harmful to the Green Belt, will make existing sewage and 
drainage problems worse, Application littered with untruths, land has never been used 
commercially
ASHGROVES, LONDON ROAD – Question whether there has ever been a commercial use here. 
Concerned that ditch line is not maintained and there are flooding issues
HILL COTTAGE, LONDON ROAD – Object, overdevelopment in the Green Belt, land never used 
commercially, adverse impact on setting of listed building. Argument that Rosaries was only a 
bungalow and has been replaced by larger property is incorrect. 

. 



Issues and Considerations: 

The main issues to consider relate to the sites location in the Green Belt, design and amenity.

Green Belt  

The site is within the Green Belt and local and national policies on Green Belts are applicable. 
Paragraph 89 of national guidance in the NPPF lists instances when new buildings need not be 
inappropriate. One such instance recorded at indent 6 states that;

“limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed sites (brownfield 
land), whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would not 
have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt and the purpose of including land within 
it than the existing development”.

Whilst the planning history of this group of buildings is unclear it appears they have been used in 
the past for ad hoc commercial and horticultural purposes. The site is distinctly separate from 
Copper Beech and in the Council’s view can be considered a brownfield site for planning 
purposes. The proposed dwelling does not have a greater volume than the existing buildings and 
therefore one new dwelling would not have a materially greater impact on the Green Belt. The 
general Green Belt principle can be agreed. 

There would also be visual benefits in Green Belt terms to removing this group of very dilapidated 
buildings and replacing them with a new dwelling. In that respect the proposed design raises no 
issues. 

Whilst this would be a backland development the Council are of the view that it would not harm the 
established character of the area, which includes a number of listed buildings. There would be the 
added benefits to the amenity of the area of removing a potential nuisance neighbour. The site 
provides a defined curtilage which although quite large, future development in terms of 
outbuildings could be controlled by conditions. 

Design 

Whilst there are Listed Buildings adjoining the site, this new development would not harm their 
special setting. As stated previously the overall aesthetic of the site would improve and the 
proposed design is appropriate for this location. Details of materials can be agreed by condition. 
The conservation officer has no concerns regarding the removal of the existing buildings which of 
no historic interest, and considers that the design is sympathetic and respects the local context 
with regard scale, massing and layout. There is concern however over the proposed use of UPVC 
windows as this would not be appropriate in this location.  It is therefore considered that a 
condition requiring details the doors and windows to be painted timber would be appropriate.

Amenity 

The amenity of the area would be safeguarded. One dwelling replacing this collection of storage 
outbuildings should reduce noise and disturbance in the immediate vicinity. The proposal will not 
result in unacceptable levels of overlooking or loss of outlook, given the separation from 
neighbours

Ecology 

A Bat an Owl Survey would be necessary as there are vacant buildings on site which would 
provide suitable habitat and this could be agreed with an appropriate condition. 



Contaminated Land

Owing to previous uses at the site the standard contaminated land conditions are necessary. 

Highways 

The Highways Authority has no objection to this scheme and there is sufficient space on site for 
adequate parking.

Land Drainage 

The applicant is proposing to dispose of surface water by soakaway. The geology of the area is 
predominantly clay and infiltration drainage may not be suitable for the site. Further details are 
required. A condition requiring details of surface water drainage is therefore necessary. 

Sewage

Concern has been raised with regard to the adequacy of the existing sewage system in the area.  
The applicant is happy for there to be a condition requiring details of foul water disposal to be 
agreed and this may entail the provision of a alternate means of sewage disposal to avoid 
overloading the current system.

Trees and Landscaping 

This development is acceptable subject to conditions agreeing tree protection measures and a 
landscaping scheme agreeing the layout of the entire site including proposed parking areas etc. 

Conclusion: 

The proposed development is considered acceptable from a Green Belt perspective and the 
design is also appropriate. There would be no material impact on amenity or highway safety. It is 
therefore recommended consent is granted subject to conditions. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer:   Mr Dominic Duffin
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564336

or if no direct contact can be made please email:  
 contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

   

 

  



123

 

104.2m

108.2m

108.5m

107.6m107.6m

104.2m

108.5m

108.2m

1 to 5St Helen's
Court

The Rectory

1 to 5St Helen's
Court

The Rectory

Carlton

El Sub Sta

Vi
nc

en
t

Ho
us

eEl Sub StaCarlton

Vi
nc

en
t

Ho
us

e

246

258

5

258
254246

5

254

18

Hom
efi

eld

18

Hom
efi

eld

32
3

District

Council Offices

31
9

District

Council Offices

31
9

32
3

236

Hotel

1 to 14
Hemnall Mews

Sealand
House

236

Hotel

1 to 14
Hemnall Mews

29
7

29
7

303 305 30
7

30
9

303 305 30
7

30
9

Sim
on1 t
o 8

28
3

287

289

Cam
pio

n
Cou

rt

1 t
o 8

287

289

Surgery

29
3

291 PH
29

3Post Office
28

127
9

27
7

1

House
LSP

Bk

7a

15

8

4

5

5a

9

7

49

61

54

52

Cottage
Vicarage
Cottage
Vicarage

Wastells

Mansard

Wrights

3

Wastells

Mansard

Wrights

3

Cam
pio

n

PH

Sealand
House

Sim
on

Cou
rt

Magistrates'
Court

Magistrates'
Court

PolSta

230

226

222
224

26
5

SortingOffice

212

218
214

216

25
7

25
9

23
1

PC

224b 224a

23
9to

25
3

25
5

15

Surgery

Bk

27
9

27
1

27
5

27
1

27
5

28
1

291

28
3

27
7

224a

222

226

224

224b

26
7

26
9

PolSta

23026
5

26
7

26
9

SortingOffice

Post Office1

House
LSP

214

218

216

212

25
7

25
9

25
5

49

23
1

23
9to

25
3

9

8

61

4

5

5a

7a

7

PC

54

52

BUTTERCROSS LANE

HEM
NAL

L

ST
RE

ET

HIG
H

ST
REE

T

STAR LANE

GROVE LA

GROVE LA

HEM
NAL

L

ST
RE

ET

HIG
H

ST
REE

T

STAR LANE

BUTTERCROSS LANE

PondPond

LB

TC
Bs

El Sub StaEl Sub Sta

LB

TC
Bs

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 3

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2795/15

Site Name: 287-291 High Street, Epping, CM16 
4DA

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No:3

APPLICATION No: EPF/2795/15

SITE ADDRESS: 287 - 291 High Street 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 4DA

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

APPLICANT: Epping High Street Limited

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Change of use from B1a to C3

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=580335

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: EX(10)100, PL(10)100, (PL)1000

3 Any renovated or replaced windows shall match in design, material and colour those 
of the existing windows.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of site:

The application site consists of the first and second floor of the building located on the 
northwestern side of the High Street. The site is located within the designated town centre of 
Epping and the Conservation Area.

The site currently consists of a dry cleaners and taxi rank at ground floor with self-contained 
offices on the upper storeys which are served by a side doorway. There is currently no off-street 
parking on site.

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=580335


Description of proposal:

Consent is being sought for the change of use of the existing upper storey offices to three 
residential units consisting of one no. 2 bed flat, one no. 1 bed flat and one no. 1 bed duplex. 
There would be no external alterations required to undertake these works.

Relevant History:

EPF/0020/94 - Change of use of part of first floor from office to hairdressing salon – approved 
15/03/94
PN/EPF/2155/15 - Proposed change of use from office (b1) to residential (c3) – withdrawn 
05/11/15

Policies Applied:

CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives

CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built form

CP6 – Achieving sustainable urban development patterns

DBE9 – Loss of amenity

TC3 – Town centre function

HC6 – Character, appearance and setting of Conservation Areas

HC7 – Development within Conservation Areas

ST1 – Location of development

The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:

21 surrounding properties were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed.

TOWN COUNCIL – Object. The proposed development removes yet further office accommodation 
from the High Street and would have a detrimental effect upon the vitality and viability of the town 
centre as an employment area, contrary to policy TC3.

National policy states that retail, office and other main town centre uses are met in full and are not 
compromised by limited site availability (NPPF, para 23).

The planning system supports sustainable development and economic growth and seeks to make 
it easier for jobs to be created in towns. Allowing offices to be converted into residential 
accommodation is contrary to this core objective.

This proposal fails to provide any parking facilities which would exacerbate parking problems in a 
town with existing parking pressures, contrary to policy ST6.

The proposed flats are large units and no provision for parking has been made within the scheme. 
Whilst this is a so called ‘sustainable’ location, it is completely unrealistic to expect that people 



who would purchase these flats at the prices they would command will not have cars which will 
end up being parked in residential streets around Epping further exacerbating the already 
unsustainable parking problem in the town.

EPPING SOCIETY – Object. We regret the loss of more business space in our High Street. There 
needs to be a healthy balance of office space and accommodation. No parking is being provided 
for three new households. This will add to our on street parking problem.

291 HIGH STREET – Object as this would limit the provision of office accommodation in the High 
Street and since there is no parking provision proposed.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with the application are considered to be the effect on the vitality and viability of 
Epping Town Centre, the impact on the conservation area, any potential loss of amenity to 
surrounding properties, and with regards to parking.

Town Centre:

Whilst the existing first floor office is an employment use that is suitable to this town centre location 
the provision of residential flats on upper storeys is recognised as being beneficial to town centres 
as it increases activity, security and custom. This is highlighted within paragraph 23 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) which states that Local Planning Authorities should, amongst 
other factors, “recognise that residential development can play an important role in ensuring the 
vitality of centres and set out policies to encourage residential development on appropriate sites”. 
Local Plan policy TC3 also highlights that the Council will “permit residential accommodation in 
appropriate locations but not at ground floor level”.

The application site is located within Epping town centre, which is one of the larger built up towns 
within the District and is well served by local services and amenities, and has good public transport 
links. The ‘golden thread’ that runs through the NPPF in terms of both plan-making and decision-
taking is the presumption in favour of sustainable development. The principle of residential 
development within this type of location is considered to accord with this presumption and 
therefore this should be afforded significant weight.

The Town Council and Epping Society object to the application partly on the basis that the 
development would lead to a loss of employment space and the Town Council state that “the 
proposed development removes yet further office accommodation from the High Street and would 
have a detrimental effect upon the vitality and viability of the town centre as an employment area”.

Whilst the concerns of the Town Council and Epping Society are appreciated Central Government 
recently introduced several changes to the permitted development regulations, with one of the 
aims being to facilitate the conversion of units to alternative uses. The clear aim is to ensure the 
planning system plays a part in kick-starting growth and aiding the emergence of the British 
economy from recession. These permitted development rights include the ability to change B1 
offices into C3 residential units. Furthermore Class M of Part 3 of the GPDO even allows for the 
change of use of small A1 or A2 units on ground floor level to be converted into residential use 
(subject to various restrictions). None of these permitted changes require an existing unit to be 
vacant nor do they demand any proof that a site is no longer desirable for its original use.

Whilst the proposed change of use cannot be undertaken as permitted development since the site 
is located within the Conservation Area, the above legislation changes are nonetheless considered 
to be material to this consideration. Paragraph 23 of the NPPF still suggests that Local Authorities 
should set policies which identify primary shopping areas and which recognise town centres as the 
heart of the community, which suggests that policies to protect the vitality and viability of town 



centres should remain, albeit in a more flexible way than previously required. However countless 
reports point to the fact that in the near future town centres “should become community hubs with 
housing, education, entertainment and leisure facilities” (The Planner November 2013). The recent 
changes to permitted development allow for a much more multi-faceted town centre where the 
Local Planning Authority has less control over intended use, which should instead be led by 
market forces.

Whilst it is regrettable to lose an employment use within this location it is recognised that 
residential use is also appropriate in such locations and the Governments recent changes to the 
planning system and the weight given to the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
highlight this. As such it is not considered that the proposed change of use would be detrimental to 
the vitality and viability of the town centre.

Conservation:

The application site is located within Epping Conservation Area and features a sympathetic 
Edwardian style red brick frontage with rendered gable and large timber framed windows. The 
ground floor displays a well designed timber shopfront.

The proposed change of use would not necessitate any external alterations, however the Design 
and Access Statement does state that “the windows fronting the High Street will be renovated”. 
Subject to a condition ensuring that the renovated windows retain their current appearance in 
terms of design, material and colour, the proposed development would be in keeping with the 
character and appearance of the conservation area.

Amenity considerations:

The introduction of residential use on the upper storeys of this building would not result in any 
undue loss of privacy or overlooking of neighbouring properties.

The proposed flats would not benefit from any private or communal amenity space, however this is 
not unusual for flats such as these located within a town centre. Therefore it is not considered that 
the lack of amenity space would constitute a reason to refuse consent for the proposed 
development.

Parking:

The Essex County Council Vehicle Parking Standards (2009) recommends that a scheme such as 
this should be served by five parking spaces (which equates to 2 x spaces for the two bed flat, 1 x 
space for each one bed unit and 1 x visitor space), however it does state that “a lower provision of 
vehicle parking may be appropriate in urban areas (including town centre locations) where there is 
good access to alternative forms of transport and existing car parking facilities”.

No off-street parking provision is proposed to serve the flats, which is a further point of objection 
from the Town Council and the Epping Society. Although these concerns are understood a 
residential development within a sustainable location such as this can be considered acceptable 
as a zero parking scheme. A similar example of this was agreed by the Planning Inspectorate on 
application ref: EPF/1924/12 for No. 261 High Street, Epping, which proposed the conversion of 
first floor offices and a bedsit into four flats. Within the appeal decision for No. 261 High Street the 
Inspector stated that:

No off-street parking is associated with the proposal. According to the appellants 
undisputed calculations, under the standards there would be a requirement for 5 spaces for 
the existing uses and 6 for the proposal. The parking standards document identifies that 



the standards can be reduced in town centre locations with good access to public 
transport.

The site is located within Epping Town centre. This is agreed to be a sustainable location 
with ready access to facilities. Notwithstanding that the existing uses are long-established, 
the parking demand generated by the proposal is unlikely to be significantly greater than 
that resulting from these uses. In this context the application of a relaxation from the 
normal standards would favour allowing the proposal, and there is no material conflict with 
the development plan in this respect.

In addition, the proposal would be a sustainable development which warrants support 
according to the National Planning Policy Framework. This advises that development 
should only be refused on transport grounds where the residual cumulative impacts are 
severe. There is no evidence to suggest that there would be such an impact in this case.

Unlike the above example whereby the proposed use had a higher parking requirement than the 
previous use, the Vehicle Parking Standards require that the existing use of the site to be served 
by six off-street parking spaces (which equates to 1 x space for each 30 sq. m. of B1 use). 
Therefore the existing lawful use of the site theoretically results in a greater parking demand than 
the proposed use. Furthermore the surrounding residential streets all have parking restrictions that 
would deter and on-parking from future residents on these streets without the relevant residential 
parking permits first being obtained.

Conclusion:

Whilst there are understandable concerns with regards to the loss of employment/business use on 
the site it is accepted that residential use within town centres can be equally beneficial to the 
overall vitality and viability of such area.

Although there would be no off street parking provision or amenity space to serve the proposed 
flats this is not unusual for locations such as this. Furthermore the existing business use of the site 
currently requires a higher level of parking provision than the proposed residential units, yet does 
not benefit from any off-street parking space. Therefore it is considered that the lack of parking 
and amenity space is considered acceptable in this instance.

Due to the above it is considered that the proposed development is in accordance with the 
relevant policies within the Adopted Local Plan, which are consistent within the National Planning 
Policy Framework, and the application is therefore recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  



123

 

77.1m

1.22m
 R

H

D
ef

1.22m RH

Centuries

C
ottage

Bramley

The Briary

Cottage

G
ladw

yne

The

Thatch

24

The

Little

Sanctuary

Thatches

Fox

16
17

22

Twinings

18

The Old

The

Q
ueens Head

10

W
heelwrights

Cottage

12 12a

14

Fern Cottage

Willow House
The Elm

s

Pum
p

Fontenoy

Southbury

Jessam
ine

THE STREET

Drain

Pond

Pp

Football Ground

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 4

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2837/15

Site Name: The Orchard, Queens Head Yard, 
The Street, Sheering, Nr Bishops 
Stortford, CM22 7LN

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No:4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2837/15

SITE ADDRESS: The Orchard
Queens Head Yard 
The Street 
Sheering 
Nr Bishops Stortford 
Herts 
CM22 7LN

PARISH: Sheering

WARD: Hastingwood, Matching and Sheering Village

APPLICANT: Mr S Foley

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed replacement dwelling (Resubmission of application 
EPF/1456/15).

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=580398

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: D 357 001A, D 357 002D, D 357 008A

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those specified within the submitted application form, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no extensions generally 
permitted by virtue of Class A or B of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

5 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=580398


any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

6 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

7 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]

8 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 



maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

9 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.  

10 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

11 Prior to the first occupation of the development the vehicle parking and turning areas 
as indicated on the approved plans shall be provided, hard surfaced, sealed and 
marked out. The parking and turning areas shall be retained in perpetuity for their 
intended purpose.

12 There shall be no discharge of surface water onto the Highway.

13 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.

14 Any gates provided at the vehicular access shall be inward opening only and shall 
be set back a minimum of 6 metres from the back edge of the carriageway.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

The application site is located on the southern side of The Street, Sheering, behind No’s 14, 16 
and 17. The application site currently contains a small brick built building that has a Certificate of 
Lawfulness for use as a residential dwelling, along with an associated yard/garden, parking, and 
vehicle access. The site is bounded to the east by No’s 18 to 22 Queens Head Yard, The Street, 
which are a row of two storey terrace properties facing onto the site. This adjoining land also gives 
access to No’s 23 and 24 Queens Head Yard, which face onto the adjacent football ground. To the 
south of the site is said football ground. To the immediate north of the site are the rear gardens of 
No’s 14, 16 and 17 The Street, and to the west is the rear garden of Wheelwrights Cottage. The 



section of the application site containing the dwelling, parking and access road (the section 
previously considered lawful for residential use) is located outside of the Metropolitan Green Belt. 
The area of proposed side garden is located within the Green Belt and has a current lawful use as 
a storage yard.

Description of Proposal:

Revised application for the removal of the existing residential property (the brick built building 
previously granted a Certificate of Lawfulness) and its replacement with a two storey four bed 
detached dwelling (including a ground floor accessible bedroom). The main two storey element of 
the proposed new dwelling would have a footprint measuring 10m in width and a maximum of 8m 
in depth. The dwelling would have a hip ended pitched roof to a ridge height of 7.8m with a two 
storey gable projection to the rear. The dwelling would incorporate a single storey rear 
conservatory with a 3.3m high roof lantern and a single storey side projection with a hipped roof to 
a ridge height of 4.1m.

The existing access would be retained and utilised with parking along the roadway and a turning 
head at the front/side of the proposed house. The proposed garden would be on the storage yard 
and would therefore encroach into the Green Belt.

Relevant History:

EPF/0276/76 - Outline application for one dwelling – withdrawn 23/06/76
EPF/1577/76 - Outline application for two dwellings – refused 17/01/77 (appeal dismissed 
27/09/77)
EPF/1720/80 - Formation of a vehicular access and erection of 6ft high chain link fencing to 
enclose drive and land adjoining – approved/conditions
EPF/0123/83 - Retention of vehicular access and compound for a further period – approved 
11/03/83
EPF/0890/85 - Outline application for house and garage – refused 04/11/85
EPF/0395/88 - Outline application for dwelling house and garage – refused 13/05/88
CLD/EPF/1043/11 - Certificate of lawful development for existing use of building for residential 
purposes and use of land as garden – lawful 14/07/11
EPF/0904/12 - Proposed new 3 bedroom detached, two storey house with parking and proposed 
new garden area – refused 02/08/12
EPF/1834/12 - Proposed new 3 bedroom detached, two storey house with parking and proposed 
new garden area (resubmitted application) – refused 15/11/12 (dismissed on appeal 19/06/13)
EPF/0794/15 - Proposed replacement dwelling – refused 02/06/15
EPF/1456/15 - Proposed replacement dwelling (Revised application to EPF/0794/15) – refused 
13/08/15

Policies Applied:

CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives

CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment

GB4 – Extensions of residential curtilages

GB7A – Conspicuous development

DBE1 – Design of new buildings

DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties

DBE8 – Private amenity space



DBE9 – Loss of amenity

ST1 – Location of development

ST4 – Road safety

ST6 – Vehicle parking

The above policies form part of the Councils 1998 Local Plan. Following the publication of the 
NPPF, policies from this plan (which was adopted pre-2004) are to be afforded due weight where 
they are consistent with the Framework. The above policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF 
and therefore are afforded full weight.

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received:

14 neighbours were consulted on this application and a Site Notice was displayed on 04/12/15. 
Given the date of the Site Notice this report has been produced prior to the expiration of the 
consultation date. Therefore any additional comments received will be verbally reported to 
Members at the Committee.

PARISH COUNCIL – Object on the following grounds:
 Adverse effect on the residential amenity of neighbours, by reason of (among other factors) 

noise*, disturbance*, overlooking, loss of privacy, overshadowing, etc. [*but note that this 
does not include noise or disturbance arising from the actual execution of the works, which 
will not be taken into account].

 The proposed development is over-bearing, out-of-scale and out of character in terms of its 
appearance compared with existing development in the vicinity.

 The loss of existing views from neighbouring properties would adversely affect the 
residential amenity of neighbouring owners.

WHEELWRIGHTS COTTAGE, THE STREET – Object since the rear of the proposed dwelling will 
face their garden and result in a loss of privacy.

21 QUEENS HEAD YARD, THE STREET – Object to the loss of light and proximity to their front 
elevation, since it would hinder emergency vehicles and access to the football pitch, and since it 
would be out of character with surrounding properties.

Issues and Considerations:

This application is a revision to several previously refused attempts, including EPF/1834/12 that 
was dismissed on appeal.

The reason for refusal on the latest application was:

The proposed development, due to the scale and proximity to the side boundary, 
would result in a dominant and intrusive structure that would cause excessive visual 
intrusion to the neighbouring residents and in addition the first floor windows in the 
front elevation will directly overlook the rear of number 17,  resulting in 
unacceptable harm to their living conditions, contrary to the guidance contained 
within the National Planning Policy Framework and policies DBE2 and DBE9 of the 
adopted Local Plan and Alterations.



The former application ref: EPF/1834/12 was refused on more than the above grounds and was 
subsequently appealed, however the Planning Inspector concluded that “the proposal would not 
harm the character or appearance of the surrounding area, including the Green Belt, and would 
not result in harm to highway safety”. Nonetheless the appeal was dismissed since they 
considered that “the proposal would cause excessive visual intrusion for the occupiers of No’s 21 
and 22 and result in unacceptable harm to their living condition. This would be contrary to Local 
Plan policies DBE2 and DBE9”.

The overall design of the proposed dwelling has been altered since the previous refusal and now 
proposes the use of a hip ended roof, a 400mm lower ridge height. However the biggest change in 
this revised application over all previous proposals is that the dwelling has now been located 
further into the south to the southwest of the previously proposed and existing dwelling. This has 
necessitated the repositioning of the dwelling so that it fronts onto Queens Head Yard and now 
faces the front elevations of No’s. 21 and 22.

Given the clear decision of the Planning Inspector with regards to the impact on the Green Belt 
and harm to highway safety, which is not altered in this revised scheme, the only considerations in 
this instance are with regards to the design and impact on the character and appearance of the 
area and any potential impact on the amenities of neighbouring residents.

Design:

The design of the proposed new dwelling has altered significantly from the previous scheme. The 
height and bulk of the roof of the proposed dwelling has been reduced and the detailing and 
external materials have also changed from the previous scheme as it is now proposed to use 
timber cladding with a brick base with sash timber windows.

It was previously stated by the Planning Inspector that “due to the siting of the dwelling set back 
from the road and the variation in types of dwellings within the area, this would not cause harm to 
established character and appearance of the area”. The relocation of the dwelling into the site 
would further reduce its visual impact on The Street and therefore it is considered that the overall 
design and appearance of the proposed dwelling would not be detrimental to the character of the 
surrounding area, as previously concluded by the Planning Inspectorate.

Amenities:

The previous 2012 scheme was dismissed by the Planning Inspector purely on the grounds that it 
would cause excessive visual intrusion and harm to the living conditions of the occupiers of No’s 
21 and 22. Within the decision letter the Inspector highlights that “the proposal is for a blank 
gabled flank elevation facing towards the terrace of No’s 18 to 22. Due to the proximity of this 
gable, a depth of around 6m at its narrowest and about 8m including the rear projection, and a 
ridge height of about 8.2m, it would be a dominant and intrusive structure when seen from No’s 21 
and 22. The lack of articulation of this elevation adds to these concerns”.

In two most recently refused applications have attempted to overcome this concern by slightly 
increasing the distance from these neighbours, but to no avail. However the significant relocation 
submitted here would increase the distance between the proposed new dwelling and the 



neighbours in Queens Head Yard from 8.5m (as proposed in 2012) to 13m. This is now a 
significant distance that would remove the previously identified harm with regards to loss of 
outlook. For the same reasons there would be no detrimental loss of light to these neighbouring 
residents.

Given the repositioning of the proposed dwelling the front wall would now face the front elevations 
of No’s 21 and 22 Queens Head Yard. Whilst the proposed dwelling would have three first floor 
front windows facing towards these neighbours the two directly opposite the neighbouring 
dwellings would serve bathrooms and therefore would be obscure glazed. Furthermore there are 
limited first floor windows within these neighbouring dwellings.

Notwithstanding this, the 13m distance between the frontages of the proposed new dwelling and 
the existing neighbours would be a sufficient distance to ensure that there would be no undue loss 
of privacy even if there were clear windows directly facing each other. This distance, and far less, 
is not uncommon in several streets throughout the district and therefore is not considered to result 
in any excessive loss of amenity to these neighbours.

The reorientation of the proposed dwelling ensures that there are now no first floor windows facing 
towards the rear garden of No. 17 The Street, which requires more protection against overlooking 
than the front elevations of No’s 21 and 22 Queens Head Yard, and given the distance from the 
shared boundary there would be no loss of light or outlook to these neighbours.

The rear elevation of the proposed new dwelling would be located a minimum of 17.5m from the 
shared boundary with Wheelwrights Cottage. Therefore this would not detrimentally impact on the 
residential amenities of this neighbour.

Other considerations:

Whilst it has already been concluded by the Planning Inspectorate that the proposed 
redevelopment of this site would not be harmful in terms of highway safety, Essex County Council 
Highways recommend conditions regarding the retention of the proposed parking/turning area and 
the position of any gates erected at the vehicle access, and conditions restricting the discharge of 
surface water onto the highway and the surface treatment of the access.

Due to the former presence of a petrol filling station, including an underground fuel tank, in the 
north part of the site and presence of an air raid shelter, previous buildings of unknown use, a 
former cesspool and an infilled watercourse in the south part of the site, there is the potential for 
contaminants to be present on site. Since domestic dwellings with gardens are classified as a 
particularly sensitive use land contaminated risks need to be investigated, assessed and, where 
necessary, remediated by way of conditions.



Conclusion:

The development of this site has previously been concluded to be acceptable in terms of the 
impact on the Green Belt and regarding highway safety and as such the proposal is still 
considered to be acceptable on these grounds. The redesign of the dwelling, reduction in size and, 
most importantly, relocation and reorientation of the new house has materially altered the proposal 
and has overcome the concerns previously raised by the Planning Inspectorate and the reason for 
refusal of the latest application. As such it is considered that the development now complies with 
the guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and the relevant Local Plan 
policies and therefore the application is recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 



This page has been left intentionally blank.



123

 

30

1

Shutters

14

2

7

25 to 36

6

Highfield

Swinburnes

M
ay

flo
w

er
 C

ou
rt

13 to 24

Croft Cottage

Garage

22

1 to 12

21

9

Rivendell

1

Gloriette

24

15

Rosemead

Three Ways

Foxhall

1

2

12

Braemar

Fistral

Fairway

Stationmasters Office

1

14

29

28

15

LAWN

BOWES DRIVE

G
REAT

MARK'S AVENUE

LB

Sand Drag

El Sub Sta

SL

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 5

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2853/15

Site Name: 2 Great Lawn, Ongar, CM5 0AA

Scale of Plot: 1/1250



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/2853/15

SITE ADDRESS: 2 Great Lawn
Ongar
Essex
CM5 0AA

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash

APPLICANT: Mr R Jackson

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of a 1.2m high front boundary wall/railing with associated 
gates (resubmission of EPF/1473/15)

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=580417

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The railings hereby permitted shall be painted black on installation and shall be 
permanently maintained in the form.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Services – Delegation of Council functions, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g))

Description of Site:

The application relates to a two storey detached house, currently vacant and undergoing building 
works and renovations, located at southern end of road close to the High Street junction. .As part 
of the works, the frontage is being hard surfaced for vehicles. 

The site lies in a wholly residential road comprising similar detached dwellings with frontage 
parking. Land rises to the north but this does not unduly affect the site.

Description of Proposal: 

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=580417


This is a resubmitted application for erection of a front wall and railings. The scheme proposes 1.2 
metre high brick piers infilled by 0.6m metre brickwork topped by 0.6 metre railings between. Metal 
gates 1.2 metres high opening inwards are also shown..

The brickwork has already been commenced using a yellow stock brick

Relevant History:

Properties in the road built under a 1959 permission, extensions approved 1977 and 1990
.
EPF/2248/14 – Two storey front extension, single storey rear extension and rear dormer approved

EPF/ 1473/15 – Erection of 2m high front boundary wall and gates refused on visual impact on the 
street scene.

Policies Applied:

CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
DBE10 Residential Extensions

NPPF The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national 
policy since March 2012.  Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant 
policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above 
policies are broadly consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.  

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Date of site visit:  07 December 15
Number of neighbours consulted:  Six
Site notice posted:  No, not required
Responses received:  One objection from 28 Great Lawn (property opposite) – the wall would be 
out of keeping with the open character of the road. The objector also raise issues around the 
scheme breaching covenants which state that property owners ‘…shall not erect or construct or 
permit to be erected or constructed any other wall fence or other erection in front of the building 
line of the property’. However such matters are for any covenant holders to pursue and not 
material to the planning application process.
Parish Council:  Object – It was felt that the application would be detrimental and out of keeping 
with the existing ‘open plan’ front garden feel of the street.

Main Issues and Considerations:

Representations refer to the open feel of frontages in the area and this is evident from visiting the 
site, the ‘estate’ is characterised by frontages with few walls and a mix of shrubs and open 
frontages. However, properties are not subject to any planning conditions withdrawing permitted 
development rights to construct walls and fences and it would be open to any property to construct 
a wall up to 1 metre high without requiring planning permission. Members must consider whether 
the additional 0.2metres has such a significant impact on the street as to warrant refusal.

 A wall has been erected at no 5, the piers of which are 1.2m high at the lower end and 1.5m at the 
higher end with half height walls topped by railings and officers consider having viewed this in situ 
that this a reasonable scale for such a boundary treatment. The materials used on the lower 
section of the wall already built are considered appropriate. If however Members come to a 



different view, then consideration will have to be given to taking enforcement action against the 
works at no.5

Conclusion:

While it could be argued that retaining the open frontages would be desirable, this is outside the 
scope of planning control where normal permitted development rights apply and must be a matter 
for the covenant holders.

Officers consider that the application now submitted is of a reasonable scale in the general context 
of the application site and surrounding area, notwithstanding the applicants permitted development 
fall back position and the limited chance of successfully enforcing against the wall already built 
nearby.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer:   Ian Ansell
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564481

or if no direct contact can be made please email:  
 contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 




	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Area Planning Subcommittee East - members photo sheet 15-16

	3 MINUTES
	Minutes
	53 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
	Minutes Public Pack, 16/12/2015 Area Planning Sub-Committee East
	Minutes
	58 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL


	7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

